
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Licensing Sub-Committee
Agenda

Wednesday 5 June 2019 
7.00 pm

Council Chamber - Hammersmith Town Hall

MEMBERSHIP

Administration: Opposition:
Councillor Natalia Perez
Councillor To Be Confirmed

Councillor Matt Thorley

CONTACT OFFICER: Charles Francis
Committee Co-ordinator
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 2062
E-mail: charles.francis@lbhf.gov.uk

Public Notice

Members of the press and public are welcome to attend this and all other Council 
meetings. Should exempt information need to be discussed then the committee will 
pass a resolution requiring members of the press and public to leave.

Speaking at Licensing meetings is restricted to those who have submitted a 
representation and registered to speak.

The open part of this agenda is available for public inspection at the Town Hall and 
may be viewed on the Council’s website www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy

A loop system for hearing impairment is provided, along with disabled access to the 
building.

Date Issued: 03 June 2019

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Licensing Sub-Committee Agenda
5 June 2019

Item Pages

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or 
any other significant interest which they consider should be declared in 
the public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the 
nature of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that 
item or as soon as it becomes apparent.

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor 
must then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken. 

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee.

3.  THE ELM, 206 NORTH END ROAD, LONDON, W14 9NX 3 - 83

4.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FROM THE LICENSING AUTHORITY - 
ENFORCEMENT HISTORY



Contents
                  Page

1. REVIEW APPLICATION 4

2. CURRENT LICENCE 4-5

3. BACKGROUND 5-6

4. CONSULTATION 6

4.1 Relevant Representations 6-9

5. OTHER INFORMATION 9

5.1 Enforcement History 9

5.2  Temporary Event Notices 9

6. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 9-11

7. THE REVIEW HEARING 11

APPENDICES

Review application, and supporting documents.………………………………..12-41

Copy of current licence and premises plan …………………………..…………..42-46

Map showing location of Premises and neighbouring
Licensed Premises and list………………………………………………………………....47-49

Copy of representations towards review application..……………………....50-79

Relevant paragraphs of the revised guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State………………………………………………………….80-83

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



1. REVIEW APPLICATION

On the 17 April 2019, an application for a review of a premises licence 
under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 was served by Mr Michael Fraser 
Starke on the Licensing Authority. The review application is in respect of 
the premises known as The Elm, 206 North End Road, London, W14 9NX. 
At the time the application was received, Ms Marie Williams and Ms Lisa 
Steggles were the licence holders.

The application for a review of the premises was made on the grounds of 
the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety and prevention of public 
nuisance. A copy of the review application and supporting documentation 
can be seen on pages 12-41 of this report.

2.    CURRENT LICENCE

The premises currently operate under a premises licence which permits the 
following licensable activities:

Performance of live music – Indoors 
Monday 10:00 -23:00
Tuesday 10:00 -23:00
Wednesday 10:00 -23:00
Thursday 10:00 -23:00
Friday 10:00 -00:00
Saturday 10:00 -00:00
Sunday 10:00 -23:00

Playing of recorded music – Indoors 
Monday 10:00 -23:00
Tuesday 10:00 -23:00
Wednesday 10:00 -23:00
Thursday 10:00 -23:00
Friday 10:00 -00:00
Saturday 10:00 -00:00
Sunday 10:00 -23:00

Sale of alcohol – On and off the premises 
Monday 10:00 -23:00
Tuesday 10:00 -23:00
Wednesday 10:00 -23:00
Thursday 10:00 -23:00
Friday 10:00 -00:00
Saturday 10:00 -00:00
Sunday 10:00 -23:00

Page 4



Hours premises open to the public  
Monday 10:00 -23:30
Tuesday 10:00 -23:30
Wednesday 10:00 -23:30
Thursday 10:00 -23:30
Friday 10:00 -00:30
Saturday 10:00 -00:30
Sunday 10:00 -23:30

A copy of the current premises licence can be seen on pages 42-45 of this 
report. 

3.    BACKGROUND

Records show that the initial premises licence was granted in respect of the 
premises on the 26 July 2005. At the time, the premises licence holders 
were Ms Karen O'Rourke, Mr Paul O'Rourke and Mr Michael Kenny. The 
Designated Premises Supervisor (“DPS”) was Ms Karen O'Rourke. 

On the 16 May 2007, Ms Williams and Ms Steggles submitted an application 
to transfer the premises licence from Ms O'Rourke, Mr O'Rourke and Mr 
Kenny. 

On the 16 May 2007, an application was submitted to vary the DPS from Ms 
O'Rourke to Ms Steggles. Ms Streggles remains the DPS.

On the 21 August 2007, an application to vary the premises was granted to 
vary the hours for the sale of alcohol and to include live and recorded music. 
A copy of the current licence can be seen on pages 42-45.

On the 15 May 2019, Ei Group Plc submitted an application to transfer the 
premises licence from Ms Williams and Ms Steggles. At the time of writing 
this report, the current licence holder in respect of the premises are Ei Group 
Plc following their application to transfer the licence with immediate effect. 
The transfer remains in effect unless the application is withdrawn or an 
objection from the Police is submitted to the Licensing Authority. The last 
date for an objection to be submitted in respect of the transfer application 
is the 28 May 2019.

The premises are located on North End Road. The premises operate as a 
public house on the ground floor of the building. A plan of the premises can 
be seen on page 46 of this report.

The main access to the premises is located on North End Road. There is a 
mixture of both residential and commercial premises within the area. A 
map showing the location of the premises and neighbouring licensed 
premises can be seen on pages 47-49 of this report.

Page 5



There are several options for transport away from the area including buses 
and taxis which run from in and around the North End Road area. West 
Kensington tube station is a 6 minute walk away from the premises and 
Fulham Broadway tube station is a fourteen minute walk away.

4. CONSULTATION

A public notice was displayed by the Council near the premises. A further 
public notice was displayed by the Council at Hammersmith Town Hall. 
Details of the application were also published on the Council’s Web Site.

A notice of review was served on the premises licence holder and all the 
statutory responsible authorities as required by regulation. 

4.1  Relevant Representations
 

A representation in support of the review was submitted by Mr Richard 
Taylor from Gosschalks Solicitors on behalf of their client Ei Group Plc. A 
copy of this representation can be seen on pages 50-51 of this report. 

The licensing section received a representation in support of the review 
application from Police Constable (“PC”) Tom Stewart of the Metropolitan 
Police.  PC Stewart requests that the Licensing Sub-Committee impose the 
following eight conditions on the licence:

1. High Definition CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained, at 
all times that the premises is open for licensable activities and;

a) shall be checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is working 
properly and that the date and time are correct. A record of these 
checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, shall be 
kept and made available to Police or authorised Council officers on 
request;

b) one camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to 
capture a clear, full length image of anyone entering;

c) shall cover any external area of the premises accessible to the public;
d) recordings shall be in real time and stored for a minimum period of 31 

days with date and time stamping;
e) footage shall be provided free of charge to Police or authorised council 

officer within 24 hours of a request; and
f) a staff member from the premises that is conversant with the 

operation of the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times the 
premises is open for licensable activities. This staff member will be 
able to show police or authorised officers of the Licensing Authority 
recent data footage with the minimum of delay when requested. This 
data or footage reproduction shall be almost instantaneous.

Page 6



2. A daily incident log shall be kept at the Premises and made available 
on request to an authorised officer of the Council or the Police or the 
Fire Service which will record the following:
(a) all crimes reported to the venue;
(b) all ejection of patrons;
(c) any complaints received;
(d) any incidents of disorder;
(e) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons;
(f) any faults in the CCTV system;
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol; and
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

3. On days when Chelsea Football Club are playing at home non glass 
vessels shall be used for three hours before the advertised kick off 
time until three hours after the match has been completed.

4. On days when Chelsea Football Club are playing at home or on days 
when Chelsea Football Club victory parade takes place there shall be 
a minimum of 2 door supervisors on the premises from 3 hours before 
the advertised kick off time until 3 hours after the match has been 
completed.

5. A drugs policy shall be in effect and all staff shall be trained in the 
implementation of the policy. The policy should be made available to 
police and authorised officers of the Licensing Authority on request.

6. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 age restricted sales policy 
and shall display appropriate signage advising customers of this 
policy.

7. Any alcohol sold for consumption off the premises shall be sold in a 
sealed container.

8. All staff responsible for selling alcohol shall receive regular training in 
the Licensing Act 2003 in terms of the licensing objectives, offences 
committed under the Act and conditions of the Premises Licence. 
Written records of this training shall be retained and made available 
to police and authorised officers of the Licensing Authority on request.

On the 20 May 2019, Mr Taylor confirmed that his clients were happy for 
the above conditions to be added to the licence. A copy of the 
representation and relevant correspondence can be seen on pages 52-57 
of this report. 

The licensing section received a representation in support of the review 
application from Noise and Nuisance Officer Mr Dom Stagg. Mr Stagg 

Page 7



requests that the Licensing Sub-Committee impose the following nine 
conditions on the licence:

1. Signs shall be prominently displayed at the exits from the premises 
reminding customers there are residents living nearby and instructing them 
to respect the neighbours and to leave the premises and surrounding area 
promptly and quietly.

2. Signs shall be prominently displayed in the back-garden area reminding 
customers there are residents living nearby and instructing them to respect 
the neighbours.

3. There shall be no regulated entertainment including ‘background music’ 
provided in or for the benefit of the back-garden area.

4. A responsible member of staff shall carry out proactive noise 
assessments around the outside of the premises at least once an hour 
during the provision of regulated entertainment to ensure that noise is not 
audible at the boundary of the nearest noise sensitive property, and 
remedial action shall be taken where noise is found to be audible.

5. A written record of proactive external noise assessments and, where 
applicable, remedial actions taken shall be kept for a minimum of 31 days 
from the date of the last entry in the record and this record shall be 
available for inspection on demand by authorised council officers at all 
times the premises are open.

6. Deliveries and collections (including refuse and / or recycling collections) 
associated with the premises shall be arranged between the hours of 08:00 
to 22:00 only.

7. Empty bottles or other glass shall not be disposed of or transported in 
bulk through any external area between the hours of 22:00 and 08:00 the 
following day.

8. Any external plant and / or equipment shall be correctly installed, 
operated, maintained, and regularly serviced, all in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions, to ensure that it is operating correctly and 
efficiently so as not to cause a nuisance to neighbours arising from noise.

9. Any external ventilation and / or extraction system and ducting shall be 
correctly installed, operated, maintained, and regularly serviced, all in 
accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions, to ensure that they are 
operating correctly and efficiently so as not to cause a nuisance to 
neighbours arising from noise or odour.

Page 8



On the 20 May 2019, Mr Taylor confirmed that his clients were happy for 
the above conditions to be added to the licence. A copy of the representation 
and relevant correspondence can be seen on pages 58-62 of this report. 

The licensing section also received a representation in support of the 
review application from Dr Geoffrey Nichol on behalf of Archel Road 
Resident’s Association (“ARRA”). The licensing authority requested Mr 
Nichol provide a list of names, addresses and signatures of the residents 
consenting to him submitting this representation on their behalf. A copy 
of this representation, list of residents and other relevant correspondence 
can be seen on pages 63-67 of this report.

The licensing section received eight further representations in support of the 
application from local residents. A copy of these representations and 
relevant correspondence can be seen on pages 68-79 of this report.

The last date for representations to be received in respect of this application 
was the 15 May 2019. On the 16 May 2019, Ms Katie Smith forwarded her 
representation to the licensing section enquiring if it had been received. The 
representation appeared to have been sent to the relevant Licensing Officers 
on the 15 May 2019 at 10:18. Ms Smith was informed that the Officers did 
not appear to have received the representation. The representation was 
accepted and forwarded to all interested parties along with relevant 
correspondence. A copy of this representation and relevant correspondence 
can be seen on pages 78-79 of this report. 

At the time of writing this report, Ms Williams and Ms Steggles have made 
no response to the review application.

5. OTHER INFORMATION 

5.1 Enforcement History

A summary of the premise’s enforcement history shall be circulated to all 
parties prior to the hearing.

5.2  Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”)

No TENs have been submitted in respect of this premises in the past twelve 
months.

6. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 It is the Council’s duty under the Licensing Act 2003 to determine the review 
with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives; Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder, Public Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Protection 
of Children from Harm.

Page 9



6.2 In reaching a decision, the Council must have regard to the Council’s 
adopted   Statement of Licensing Policy (“SLP”) and the guidance issued by 
the Secretary of State under section 182 Licensing Act 2003.

6.3 The revised guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Guidance”) contains advice in paragraphs 
11.16 to 11.28 in relation to the review of a premises licence. Paragraphs 
11.16 to 11.28 of the revised Guidance can be seen on pages 80-83 of this 
report. 

6.4 The Council’s own SLP gives guidance concerning the review of a premises 
licence.  

6.6 Section 21.1 page 36 of the SLP states that the Act describes two “groups” 
that may make representations to applications and may apply for an existing 
premises licence or club premises certificate to be reviewed by the Licensing 
Authority. These groups are Responsible Authorities and “Other Persons”.

6.7  Section 21.2 page 36 of the SLP states that “Other Persons” means any 
individual, body or business who is affected by the operation of a licensed 
premises regardless of their geographical location. Although they may be in 
any geographical position, any representation they make must be relevant 
to one or more of the licensing objectives, and must not be considered to 
be frivolous or vexatious in nature. Additionally, any application to review a 
premises licence must not be repetitious.

6.8  Section 21.3 page 37 of the  SLP states that the Licensing Authority will, 
however, look at the geographical location of the author of any 
representation or review application received. Where the author lives or 
works a significant distance from the premises subject of an application or 
review, this Authority will examine the content of the representation 
particularly closely to ensure that it is valid and complies with the 
requirement of the Act.

6.9 Section 21.5 page 37 of the SLP states that at any stage, following the grant 
of a premises licence, a Responsible Authority, such as the police or the fire 
authority, or other persons, may apply for a licence to be reviewed because 
of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the four 
Licensing Objectives.

6.10 Section 21.6 page 37 of the SLP states that a licence may be reviewed 
where it is alleged that the Licensing Objectives are not being promoted and 
there is evidence to show this. The Licensing Authority will regard 
applications for the review of any premises licence particularly seriously 
where they involve evidence of:

Page 10



• Incidents of disorder; 
• Instances of public nuisance where warnings have been disregarded; 
• Serious risks to public safety which the management is unable or unwilling 
to correct; and
• Frequently operating outside permitted hours.

7. THE REVIEW HEARING 

In determining this application, the Committee must have regard to the 
representations and take such of the following steps as it considers 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps are:

(a) Take no further action.
(b) Modify the conditions of the licence.
(c) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence.
(d) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.
(e) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.
(f) Revoke the licence.

Where the Committee takes a step mentioned in (b) or (c) above, it may 
provide that the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such 
period (not exceeding three months) as it may specify.

In making its decision, the Committee must act with a view to promoting 
the licensing objectives:

 the prevention of crime and disorder
 the prevention of public nuisance
 public safety
 protection of children from harm

It must also have regard to its own SLP and the Guidance.

If the Committee is minded to amend the licence, conditions may be 
attached to the licence to alleviate the concerns raised through 
representations; nevertheless, this is a matter for the Committee to 
determine in light of the above matters, and any others it considers 
material.

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83


	Agenda
	3 The Elm, 206 North End Road, London, W14 9NX
	00206BB77CD3190528161926


